
1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 14, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1 
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA 

OAKLAND, CA 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. CONSENT ITEMS 

a) Review of Board Minutes from October 17, 2019 
Panel Meeting 

b) Approval of Board Minutes from October 24, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

4. OPEN FORUM 

5. APPEALS*
 

a) T19-0011, Aguirre v. Diamond Properties 
b) T19-0097, Torres de Janon v. Melter 

6. ACTION ITEMS 

a) Formation of additional ad hoc committees, membership and 
review of issues identified in May 9, 2019, Board meeting 
(see attached list on page 3) 

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a) Rent Adjustment Program Updates (C. Franklin 

Minor) 
b) Legislative Updates (Office of the City Attorney) 

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND SCHEDULING 
a) Report from Ad Hoc Committee – Deferred Maintenance v. 

Capital Improvement of Dry Rot 
b) Appeal Recommendation Discussion  

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

* Staff recommendation memos for the appeals will be available at the Rent Program and the Clerk’s office 

at least 72 hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.080.C and 2.20.090. 

000001



2  

Accessibility. This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request 
disability-related accommodations or to request an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or 
Spanish interpreter, please email sshannon@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238- 
3715 or California relay service at 711 at least five working days before the 
meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as a 
courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities. 

 
Esta reunión es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones 
relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un intérprete de en español, 
Cantones, Mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) por favor envié un correo 
electrónico a sshannon@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-3715 o 711 por lo 
menos cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión. Se le pide de favor que no use 
perfumes a esta reunión como cortesía para los que tienen sensibilidad a los 
productos químicos. Gracias. 

 

會場有適合輪椅出入設施。需要殘障輔助設施, 手語, 西班牙語, 

粵語或國語翻譯服務, 請在會議前五個工作天電郵 sshannon@oaklandca.gov 

或致電 (510) 238-3715 或 711 California relay service. 

請避免塗搽香氛產品，參加者可能對化學成分敏感。 

Service Animals/Emotional Support Animals: The City of Oakland Rent 
Adjustment Program is committed to providing full access to qualified persons 
with disabilities who use service animals or emotional support animals. 

 
If your service animal lacks visual evidence that it is a service animal (presence 
of an apparel item, apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably 
establish that the animal does, in fact, perform a function or task that you cannot 
otherwise perform. 

 
If you will be accompanied by an emotional support animal, then you must 
provide documentation on letterhead from a licensed mental health professional, 
not more than one year old, stating that you have a mental health-related 
disability, that having the animal accompany you is necessary to your mental 
health or treatment, and that you are under his or her professional care. Service 
animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave properly in 
public. An animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or aggressive 
manner (barks, growls, bites, jumps, urinates or defecates, etc.) will be removed. 

000002

mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov
mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov
mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov


3  

Formation of additional ad hoc committees, membership and review of issues 
identified in May 9, 2019, Board meeting: 

 

 Information about the Building Code and intersection with the 
Regulations; (e.g. window bars-there is a code that applies to 
this.) 

 Should dry rot be treated differently from other deferred 
maintenance items? 

 Clarification of deferred maintenance v. items that benefit 
tenants? 

 Ambiguous terms in the regulations and in the Ordinance; 

 How is the value of the Decreased Housing Services determined? 

 What constitutes a burden of proof regarding expenses for capital 
improvements? 

 Effects of AB 1482 on Rent Adjustment Program Ordinance 

 Denial of subtenant/roommate constitutes a decreased housing 
service? 

000003



1 
 

 
                                                        CITY OF OAKLAND   
                                          Rent Adjustment Program 

    

MEMORANDUM 

Date:                     
 
To:                                 Members of the Housing, Residential Rent & Relocation Board 
                                      (HRRRB)     

From:                            Staff 

Re:                                 Recommendation for Appeal in T17-0371  
                            [case name] 

 
Appeal Hearing Date:   
 

Property Address:        

Appellant/Tenant:        

Respondent/Owner:        

 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

2. ISSUE 

 

3. ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By: Barbara Kong-Brown 

Senior Hearing Officer 

 

000004



1 
 

 
                                                        CITY OF OAKLAND   
                                          Rent Adjustment Program 

    

MEMORANDUM 

Date:                     
 
To:                                 Members of the Housing, Residential Rent & Relocation Board 
                                      (HRRRB)     

From:                            Staff 

Re:                                 Recommendation for Appeal in T17-0371  
                            [case name] 

 
Appeal Hearing Date:   
 

Property Address:        

Appellant/Tenant:        

Respondent/Owner:        

 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

2. ISSUE 

 

3. ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

4. RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Prepared By: Barbara Kong-Brown 

Senior Hearing Officer 

000005



1 
 

 
                                                        CITY OF OAKLAND   
                                          Rent Adjustment Program 

    

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:                    October 16, 2019 
 
To:                                 Members of the Housing, Residential Rent & Relocation Board 
                                      (HRRRB)     

From:                            STAFF 

Re:                                 Appeal Summary: [input case number]: T17-0371  
                            [case name] 

 
Appeal Hearing Date:  October 24, 2019 
 

Property Address:        

Appellant/Tenant:                           

Respondent/Owner:        

 

1. PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND 

 

2. RULING ON THE CASE 

 

3. ISSUES 

 

4. APPLICABLE LAW AND PAST BOARD DECISIONS 

 

 

Prepared By: Barbara Kong-Brown 

Senior Hearing Officer 

000006



CITY OF OAKLAND 
HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 

 
PANEL MEETING 
October 17, 2019 

          7:00 p.m. 
City Hall, Hearing Room #1 

One Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, CA 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The HRRRB Panel was called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Panel Chair, Julia Ma 
Powers 

  
 2.  ROLL CALL  

 
MEMBER   STATUS  PRESENT    ABSENT  EXCUSED 
 
Julia Ma Powers  Homeowner  X 
Benjamin Scott  Landlord Alt.  X 
Hannah Flanery   Tenant Alt.  X 

  
Staff Present 
 
Ubaldo Fernandez Deputy City Attorney, Office of the City Attorney 
Barbara Kong-Brown Senior Hearing Officer, Rent Adjustment Program 
Kelly Rush  Program Analyst 1 
   

 3.   OPEN FORUM 
 
  No Speakers 
 
 4.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

i. Appeal Hearing in cases: 
 

a. T18-0387, Villalobos v. Tran 
b. T18-0218, Durrett et al. v. Guiton 

 
                     a.  T18-0387, Villalobos v. Tran 
 

Appearances  Xiao Ping Lu  Owner Appellant 
   Xavier Johnson Tenant Appellee Representative 

000007



 2 

      
 The owner appealed from a hearing decision which granted restitution for 
decreased housing services for a floor tile and kitchen light 

 
Grounds for Appeal 
 
 The owner appealed the hearing decision on the ground that there are 
math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. 

 
Specifically, the owner contended that the restitution periods are incorrect, that 

(1)  the period of restitution for the floor tile is from July 2017, not February 2015, and 
(2) the period of restitution for the kitchen light is from October 2017, not February 2015. 
 
 The tenant representative stated that they had no objection to correcting the 
restitution period for the floor tile and kitchen light. 
 
Appeal Decision 
 
 After questions to the owner and Board discussion, H. Flanery moved to affirm 
the hearing decision based on substantial evidence, with instructions to staff to adjust 
the restitution period for the floor tile, from July 2017, to February 28, 2019, and for the 
kitchen light,  from October 2017, to February 28, 2019.  B. Scott seconded. 
 
 The Board panel voted as follows: 
 
Aye:       H. Flanery, J. Ma Powers, B. Scott 
Nay:       
Abstain: 0 
 
The motion was approved by consensus. 
 
  b. T18-0218, Durrett et al. v. Guiton 
 

Appearances  Jessie Guiton Owner Appellant 
   No appearance by Tenant 

      
 The owner appealed from a hearing decision granting restitution for decreased 
housing services. 
 
Grounds for Appeal 
 

The owner appealed the hearing decision on the following grounds: 
 
1. The hearing decision is not supported by substantial evidence; 
 
2. She was denied a sufficient opportunity to present her claim; 

000008



 3 

 
3. The petitioner was not a tenant when she filed her petition. 

 
Appeal Decision 
 
 After questions to the owner and Board discussion, J. Ma Powers moved to not 
remand the hearing decision based on a finding that there was no good cause for the 
owner’s failure to appear at the underlying hearing.  H. Flanery seconded. 
 
 The Board panel voted as follows: 
 
Aye:       H. Flanery, J. Ma Powers, B. Scott 
Nay:       
Abstain: 0 
  
 H. Flanery moved to remand the decision to the hearing officer to make a factual 
determination as to whether any of the petitioners had standing as tenants at the time 
they filed their petition. The hearing officer may make this finding on the record or may 
hold a hearing to hear new evidence if she believes it is necessary. The Board affirms 
the restitution for decreased housing services contingent on a finding that the petitioners 
were tenants when they filed the petition. 
 
The motion was approved by consensus. 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 pm. 

 

000009



1  

mvisayaHOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION 
BOARD REGULAR MEETING 

October 24, 2019 
7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1 
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA 

OAKLAND, CA 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The HRRRB meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Chair, J. Warner. 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 

T. HALL Tenant   X 

R. AUGUSTE Tenant X   

H. FLANERY Tenant Alt.   X 

C. TODD Tenant Alt.   X 
     

R. STONE Homeowner X   

J. WARNER Homeowner X   

A. GRAHAM Homeowner X   

E. LAI Homeowner Alt.   X 

J. MA POWERS Homeowner Alt.   X 
     

K. FRIEDMAN Landlord   X 

T. WILLIAMS Landlord X   

B. SCOTT Landlord Alt.   X 

K. SIMS Landlord Alt.   X 
 

Staff Present 

Ubaldo Fernandez Deputy City Attorney 
Oliver Luby Deputy City Attorney 
Kelly Rush Program Analyst 

3. CONSENT ITEMS 

a) Approval of Board Minutes from September 26, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

b) Approval of Board Minutes from October 3, 2019 
Panel Meeting 

c) Approval of Board Minutes from October 10, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
 

000010



2  

J. Warner indicates that item B is for review only.  
 
R. Stone motions to approve Board minutes from 
September 26th and October 10th. R. Auguste 
seconds motion.  
 
The Board voted as follows: 
Aye: R. Auguste, R. Stone, J. Warner, T. Williams 
Nay: 
Abstain:  

 
(A. Graham not present for this vote) 
 
The motion passed by consensus. 

4. OPEN FORUM 

  Speaker: James Vann 

5. APPEALS 

a) T18-0226, Baragano v. Discovery Investments 
 

Appearances:    Guillermo Baragano Tenant Appellant 
                                                  Matthew Quiring  Attorney for the Appellee 
 

          The tenant appealed the hearing decision which denied a 
tenant petition contesting a rent increase. The tenant contended that 
the notice was invalid because the notice stated a “percentage” 
rather than an “amount” for the increase and that the owner was not 
entitled to banking. The tenant also provided that the owner stated at 
the underlying hearing that they did not know the exact rent amount 
that he was paying in 2007 and that the hearing officer should not 
estimate the rent paid at that time. The appellant also stated that the 
recommendation provided by staff violates his due process, 
contained inaccuracies and he was unable to respond to claims 
made within the recommendation. The tenant also contended that 
there was bias by the Hearing Officer because evidence was allowed 
at the hearing, the Hearing Officer was instructing the owner how to 
answer questions and the Hearing Officers had ex parte 
communications with the owner.  
 
          The owner representative appeared and responded to the 
claims presented by the tenant appellant. The owner representative 
pointed to a chart in the file that was submitted into evidence which 
did provide the rent amount in 2007 and that was not contested by 
the tenant in the underlying hearing. The representative contended 
that the amount could be expressed as a percentage or dollar 
amount and these are only relative measure versus a qualified 

000011



3  

measure. The owner representative concluded that the decision was 
properly decided, and the tenant was given sufficient due process.  
 

 After arguments made by both parties, Board questions to 
the parties and Board discussion, R. Stone moved to affirm the 
Hearing Decision based on substantial evidence and application 
of plain language of the ordinance. R. Stone seconded the 
motion. 

 
The Board voted as follows: 

 
Aye: R. Stone, T. Williams  
Nay: A. Graham, R. Auguste, J. Warner  
Abstain: 

The motion failed. 

J. Warner motioned to remand with instructions that the amount 
is required in a notice. A. Graham seconded the motion. J. Warner 
amends her motion to instruct the hearing officer that the notice 
should include a dollar amount and find the notice was defective. A. 
Graham accepts the amendment.  

 

The Board voted as follows: 
 

Aye: R. Auguste, A. Graham, J. Warner  
Nay: R. Stone, T. Williams 
Abstain: 

The motion passed. 

b) L17-0062, Kahan v. Tenants 
 

Appearances:    Mark Rubke Attorney for Appellant 
                                                  No appearances by tenants  
 

The owner appealed the Hearing Decision that denied the 
owner’s petition for exemption based on substantial rehabilitation. 
The owner representative contended that the project was paid before 
filing and the invoice submitted in the underlying hearing was 
sufficient evidence to prove that the project was paid. The 
representative contends that the project could not be completed 
without payment. The owner representative stated that this situation 
fit the purpose for enactment of the code and puts these units back 
on the rental market.  

   

000012



4  

  
After arguments made by both parties, Board questions to the 

parties and Board discussion, J. Warner moved to affirm the Hearing 
Decision based on findings that the owner did not meet the burden 
for substantial rehabilitation due to lack of providing the square 
footage used to calculate the substantial rehabilitation and not 
meeting the requirement of invoices and proof of payment to 
substantiate costs to be considered.   
 

R. Stone seconded with a friendly amendment based on 
payment records from Home Depot that are silent as to what was 
purchased and what is was used for. The owner failed to meet the 
burden to show construction contract, value of the work, where work 
was done, nature of the work and that materials were paid for as 
required by the Ordinance. R. Stone would also like to point out that 
his motion disregards the appeal recommendation and is based 
solely on the file and Hearing Decision.  

 
J. Warner accepted the friendly amendment.  

   
The Board voted as follows: 

 
Aye: R. Auguste, A. Graham, J. Warner, R. Stone, T. Williams 
Nay:  
Abstain: 

The motion passed by consensus. 
   

c) T17-0371, Arnold v. Farley Levine Properties 
 

Appearances:    David Arnold Tenant Appellant 
                                                  Barbara Farley  Owner Appellee  

 

The tenant appealed the Hearing Decision which denied the 
tenant’s claim for decreased services by denial to sublease his rental 
unit. The tenant appeared and contended that this issue was never 
heard or adjudicated and res judicata should not apply. The appellant 
indicated that the stipulation excluded rent petitions and did not have 
the intent to allow the owners to commit the same action over and 
over. The tenant appellant seeks to distinguish this case from the 
decision in Nanos v. Jerez in a hearing and allow the Hearing Officer 
to decide if this still applies to his situation. Mr. Arnold also argues 
that he always has housemates (as identified in the declaration by 
the prior owner of the property) and that he can’t settle something 
that hasn’t happened yet.  
 

000013



5  

 
The owner appellee contended that the tenant brought forth 

three separate litigations and these claims were settled in the 
stipulation agreement. The owner also provides that res judicata 
should apply to this situation  

 

After arguments made by both parties, Board questions to the 
parties and Board discussion, R. Stone motioned to dismiss the 
petition because Superior Court retains continuing jurisdiction over 
the settlement agreement and the remedies should be sought there.  

 
J. Warner seconds the motion and requests to add a friendly 

amendment that the underlying issue is a contractual agreement that 
they want to litigate the terms of.  

 
R. Stone accepts the friendly amendment and restates his 

motion to dismiss the petition based on the fact that the dispute 
centers on the settlement agreement between the landlord and the 
tenant and that any continuing dispute should be heard in Superior 
Court.  

 
The Board voted as follows: 

 
Aye: R. Auguste, A. Graham, J. Warner, R. Stone, T. Williams 
Nay:  
Abstain: 

The motion passed by consensus. 

6. ACTION ITEMS 

a) Formation of additional ad hoc committees, membership and 
review of issues identified in May 9, 2019, Board meeting 
(see attached list on page 3) 

 J. Warner requests to add issue from Arnold v. Farley 
to list of possible issues for ad hoc committees. This issue 
would examine whether denial of subtenant/roommate 
should be considered a decreased housing service. 

 R. Stone requests to introduce an ad hoc committee to 
address the burden of proof regarding expenses for capital 
improvement.   

 R. Stone removes this request and will wait until a 
later meeting where more members are present at the 
meeting.  

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

000014



6  

a) Updates on the Efficiency Ordinance (City Attorney’s Office) 
 

 City Attorney U. Fernandez states there is no update 
since the draft last came before the Board 
 
 J. Warner requests that this item be added to the next 
full board meeting to provide any updates to the Ordinance.  
 

b) Discussion of changes to HUD Requirements and Fair 
Housing Act (J. Warner) 
 
 J. Warner states that this was not requested to 
be discussed but was provided simply to appreciate 
the City Attorney’s office for their comments submitted 
regarding these changes.  

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND SCHEDULING 
a) Report from Ad Hoc Committee – Deferred Maintenance v. 

Capital Improvement of Dry Rot 
 

 T. Williams provided that there is no update. The 
next meeting that is scheduled will be next Wednesday 
and there should be something to report at the next 
regular full Board meeting in November.  
 
Other Requests for Reports/Scheduling 
 
 J. Warner requested to add a regular agenda item 
for staff to report about general updates (i.e., workshops, 
items going to Council or other items for the Board’s 
attention.) 
 
 R. Auguste requests an item be added to the next 
full Board agenda to discuss the appeal recommendation 
process and proposed changes from the Board.  

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The HRRRB meeting was adjourned at 9:25 p.m. by Chair, J. Warner. 

000015



000016



000017



000018



000019



000020



000021



000022



000023



000024



000025



000026



000027



000028



000029



000030



000031



000032



000033



000034



000035



000036



000037



000038



000039



000040



000041



000042



000043



000044



000045



000046



000047



000048



000049



000050



000051



000052



000053



000054



000055



000056



000057



000058



000059



000060



000061



000062



000063



000064



000065



000066



000067



000068



000069



000070



000071



000072



000073


	HRRRB 11.14.2019 BOARD AGENDA Regular Meeting 11-14-2019
	HRRRB 11.14.2019 Apeals Summary Template 2
	HRRRB 11.14.2019 Apeals Recommendation Template 1
	HRRRB 11.14.2019 Appeal Summary Template 1
	HRRRB 11.14.2019 BOARD PANEL MINUTES 10-17-19
	HRRRB 11.14.2019 BOARD Regular Meeting Minutes 10-24-2019
	HRRRB 11.14.2019 CHRONS



